ROYAL DOCKS & NORTH WOOLWICH  - Timeline


	1844
	The Metropolitan Building Act prohibited noxious industries within the metropolitan area. These trades moved to East and West Ham and communities grew up around them.

	1846-7
	Railway engineer G P Bidder constructed a freight line from the Eastern Counties line at Stratford to North Woolwich via Bow Creek through undeveloped marshland.


	1850-5
	Bidder and others with railway interests built the Victoria Dock

	1851
	Riverside Pleasure Garden opened

	1852
	Samuel Silver’s waterproof clothing factory opened, giving the area its name (Silvertown)

	1854
	North Woolwich Station built

	1855
	Victoria Dock Station (now Custom House) opened. Hydraulic power installed at the docks

	1858
	A Hydraulic shiplift invented by Edwin Clarke installed at Pontoon Dock (used until 1896)

	1859
	K-R Warehouses built as a bonded store for tobacco by Bidder

	1859-64
	Northern Outfall Sewer contructed as part of Bazalgette’s scheme

	1862
	St Mark’s Church by S S Teulon built

	1863
	Silvertown Station opened

	1864
	The Victoria Dock sold to St Katherine’s Dock Company

	1868-70
	The Gas Light & Coke Company opened gasworks on a 540 acre site at Beckton, named after the company’s governor Simon Adams Beck.

	1875-80
	Royal Albert Dock constructed by the St Katherine’s Dock Company to provide an eastern entrance to Victoria Dock. Constructed by Lucas & Aird at a cost of £2.2m it was designed by Alexander Rendel for vessels up to 12,000 tons. Intended as a ship canal with quay along north side but during construction it was decided to wharf the south side. It provided 33 sheds/warehouses along 3 miles of quay to deal with goods in transit especially food. The Victoria Dock was renamed

	1878
	Henry Tate & Sons built premises to produce cube sugar

	1878-80
	The Connaught Passage linked the Royal Victoria and Royal Albert Docks. The swing bridge here had a 90’ span and carried two rail tracks and a single lane road. The North Woolwich Railway had to be diverted through a tunnel

	1880
	The Duke of Connaught officially opened the dock which was the first to have (arc) lighting

	1880s
	The area became a major centre of industry. Many people were employed in the factories, docks and gasworks

	1881
	Abram Lyle & Sons built premises to manufacture golden syrup. An area of settlement built on the marshes (named after Cyprus, the island colonised in 1878). After WWII it became a pre-fab site. Only the Ferndale pub remains

	1881-3
	Passenger facilities provided by the Great Eastern Railway which ran a service from Fenchurch Street. The Connaught Tavern, the Central Buffet & Dock Manager’s Office and Gallions Hotel designed in ‘Norman Shaw’ style by George Vigers & T R Wagstaffe. The Gallions Hotel (for first class passengers) had subways to the quay and underground stables. There was a billiard room on the first floor. The Connaught is now a bar/restaurant but the Central Buffet & Dock Manager’s Office is unused. All the buildings are Grade II listed

	1882
	Single storey, twin-span sheds linked by covered areas built by Westwood Baillie & Co at the Royal Albert Dock. By this date the Beckton gasworks had 12 gasholders and was the largest in Europe employing up to 10,000 men in winter

	1883 
	W Warehouse built by Robert Carr

	1886
	Tilbury Docks were constructed by the West India Dock Company at a cost of £2.8m The over provision of dock facilities put the East and West India Dock Companies into receivership. 

	1887
	Tate & Lyle social club built on Albert Road/Wythes Road

	1889
	The Great Dock Strike for the ‘Docker’s Tanner’. Woolwich Free Ferry for passengers and vehicles provided by the London County Council (LCC) using paddle steamers. Sewage Treatment Works established

	1890
	The riverside pleasure gardens improved by the LCC and renamed Royal Victoria Gardens

	1895-7
	North Woolwich Pumping Station built by the LCC

	1900
	A Royal Commission appointed as low financial returns had led to a lack of investment

	Early 1900s
	Electric and mechanical handling equipment available

	1901
	Docks planned for north and south of the Royal Albert by the London & India Dock Company

	1903
	The first council housing built by East Ham in Savage Gardens alongside a park (now New Beckton Park)

	1908
	Penny Ferry built in conjuction with the railway closed

	1909 
	The Port of London Authority (PLA) formed. It took over the powers of existing companies and began a programme of modernisation

	1909-12
	A foot tunnel under the Thames by Sir Maurice Fitzmaurice constructed

	1910-50
	Prosperous period dealing in transhipment of bulk cargos from deep sea trades especially the Commonwealth

	1912
	A docker’s strike was crushingly defeated

	1912-21
	64 acre King George V Dock with entrance locks to the east built by the PLA to take ships up to 30,000 tons. Two storey transit sheds on north side of reinforced concrete with brick infill. 42 Babcock & Wilcox electric cranes on south side

	1914-7
	The world’s largest cold store built for frozen meat with a concrete water-retaining roof for cooling. The adjacent compressor house in red brick remains. Work on the King George V Dock halted

	1917
	The Silvertown explosion in a TNT plant damaged 60-70,000 properties and killed 73 people

	1918
	The railway ferry closed

	1919-39
	Slum clearance undertaken and new houses and facilities provided

	1920
	Grain ‘D’ Silo built to replace buildings of 1898 damaged in the Silvertown explosion

	1921
	Tate & Lyle merged

	1922-4
	Dockmaster’s Office designed by Sir Edwin Cooper

	1924
	Harland & Wolff shipbuilders & repairers opened. Lyle Park provided as a local amenity

	1925
	O – R Warehouses reconstructed after a fire

	1926
	During the General Strike armed troops and police took food convoys from the Royal Albert Dock. Royal Navy submarines connected their generators to the cold store to keep the freezers working when power was cut off

	1931
	An office building at King George V Dock designed by Sir Edwin Cooper built (now City Airport’s transit office)

	1932-4
	Silvertown Way by Dorman Long & Co built

	1933
	Millenium Mills built for Spillers

	1935-7
	The Connaught Passage and Royal Albert Dock deepened

	1935-1940s
	The western end of the Royal Victoria Dock remodelled to include the tidal entrance basin. 

	1936
	The West India Dock trade transferred to the Royals

	1937
	North quay at Royal Victoria Dock reconstructed, replacing finger jetties

	1939
	The White Star Line’s SS Mauretania entered the King George V Dock after its first Atlantic crossing

	1940
	Docks and gasworks targeted during the Blitz. 114 people were killed in West Ham on 7th September (Black Saturday) and 47 nights of bombing followed

	1940-5
	Tate & Lyle’s factory began producing aeroplane parts and powdered food as refining decreased. They had their own ARP, Home Guard and pig club. Some of the dock trade moved to Scotland.

	1944-5
	V1 & V2 rocket attacks were ‘directed’ eastwards by false information. The Royal Victoria Dock’s railway system was badly damaged

	1945
	Number 13 shed at King George V Dock was destroyed by a V2

	1946
	Introduction of fork lift trucks and pallets

	1947
	National Dock Labour Scheme introduced by Ernest Bevin

	1948
	A Customs house built at King George V Dock

	1950s
	Tate & Lyle’s premises rebuilt

	1951-6
	Gallions entrance lock reconstructed by John Mowlem & Co Ltd

	1954
	Millenium Mills extended

	1957
	West entrance to the Royal Victoria Dock closed

	1958
	The Connaught Passage widened except where the bridge crossed

	1960s
	Air transport and the development of Tilbury and container traffic affected the Royals. Lorry parks laid out behind sheds. Silver’s factory demolished 

	1963
	Floating Crane ‘London Samson’ commissioned by PLA, capable of lifting 120 tons. Woolwich Free Ferry replaced with diesel vessels

	1969
	Coal gas production ceased at Beckton

	1972
	Harland & Wolff closed

	1975-8
	A Pumping Station by Mason Pittendrigh & Partners built on Gallions Roundabout to drain Beckton Marshes

	Late 1970s
	New housing built in Cyprus

	1978
	Financial losses bought the PLA near insolvency. Their restructuring plans were granted £35m by the Government to keep operational

	1980
	The West India and Millwall Docks closed

	1981
	The Royals closed for cargo handling (laying up & ship repairs continued until 1983) with losses at £6.7m per annum. The London Docklands Development Corporation (LDDC) established to secure regeneration. Newham Council drained marshes, laid out roads, made provision for parks and built council houses. Properties in Savage Gardens rebuilt

	1982-7
	Creation of London City Airport on the quay between the Royal Albert & King George V Docks, including site of dry & graving docks. The £30m project undertaken by T Barr Rendell Palmer & Tritton with terminal and control tower designed by Seifert Ltd.

	1983
	Royal Victoria Dock transferred from PLA to LDDC

	1984
	Railway Museum opened in old North Woolwich Station building. Thames Barrier opened (or should that be closed!)

	1984-9
	St Mark’s Church restored by Julian Harrap after a fire

	1986
	Royal Albert & King George V Docks transferred from the PLA to LDDC 

	1986-90
	A Tidal Basin Pumping Station constructed to drain the area

	1987
	City Airport officially opened by the Queen. Schemes for the Victoria and Royal Albert Docks shelved due to the property recession

	1988
	Masterplan for the Royal Albert Dock drawn up by Richard Rogers & Partners including a business park at Connaught Crossing

	1980s –1990s
	Beckton District Park created by the LDDC from fields and derelict industrial land

	1990s
	Quaysides cleared and landscaped by Keyside & Gillespies. BT satellite station established

	1990
	Connaught Crossing (swing road bridge) built by Sir William Halcrow & Partners. A steel box girder bridge built to carry Woolwich Manor Way over the dock entrances. This is named after Olympic rower Sir Steve Redgrave. Royal Albert Way constructed. City Airport extended to take small jets

	1992
	The University of East London (UEL) was created from West Ham Technical Institute, S E Essex Technical College & S E London Polytechnic

	1992-4
	Docklands Light Railway (DLR) extended from Poplar to Beckton where housing and roads were built

	1994
	The gates from Harland & Wolff resited in Lyle Park

	1994-5
	The Compressor House restored by Rees Johns Bolter

	1995-8
	Britannia Village developed to a Tibbalds Monro masterplan

	1996
	The Connaught Tavern restored by Brian Clancy Partnership

	1997
	The Royals Business Park opened

	1997-9
	Transporter Bridge by Lifschutz Davidson & Teckniker constructed over the Royal Victoria Dock linking the ExCel area with Britannia Village

	1997-2000
	Thames Barrier Park laid out

	1998
	LDDC wound up and control passed to English Partnerships. LB Newham, Royal Docks Trust and Royal Docks Management Authority (RODMA) also took on responsibilities

	1998-9
	First phase of UEL designed by Edward Cullinan constructed providing teaching and support facilities for 2,400 students in 8 departments and accommodation for 384

	1999
	Royal Albert Dock widened into the Albert Basin to provide an Olympic standard (2000m) rowing course. Regatta Centre with separate clubhouse and boatstore designed by Ian Ritchie. New bridge constructed and IVAX Pharmaceutical works & HQ established at Albert Basin

	2000
	ExCel exhibition Centre opened. Adjacent Royal Victoria Square landscaped by Patel Taylor. English Partnerships handed control over to London Development Agency (LDA)

	2000-1
	Barrier Point (housing) by Goddard Manton constructed.

	2003
	Second phase of UEL begun. Development of Gallions Point by Fairview Housing on the former Harland & Wolff site. Ramada Hotel and Premier Travel Inn opened adjacent to ExCel. St Mark’s Church converted for Brick Lane Music Hall

	2004
	W Warehouse converted to apartments. Building 1000 completed as part of the business park planned by Aukett Associates from 1997. Two 5 storey office blocks are linked by a glass winter garden. They are due to house the offices of Newham Borough Council from April 2008. Architecture and Visual Arts Complex provided at UEL

	2005
	DLR extension to King George V opened providing a station at City Airport.

	2006
	Business School, Petchey Centre for Entrepreneurship and a new centre for the School of Computing & Technology opened at UEL

	2007
	Student Village completed at UEL with 5 halls for 800 students plus SU café/bar, shop and launderette. Development of Royal Quay by Gladedale and LDA to provide apartments and other facilities


2009                    DLR extension to North Woolwich opened.

Resources

Buildings of England London 5: East by Cherry, O’Brien & Pevsner

Royal Docks Trust website www.royaldockstrust.org.uk 


London Borough of Barking & Dagenham website www.bardaglea.org.uk/docklands/index.html 

Museum of London Docklands www.museumindocklands.org.uk 

Dockland Life by Chris Ellmers & Alex Werner

Silvertown Art http://exploringeastlondon.co.uk/Silvertown/Silvertown.htm 
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PAGE  
4

